
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                                      ( june 6) (Week 23 of 2023) 

                                     
I                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

            
                                                                      
      
 Daniel A. Bittinger II          Mark Nelson             Keith W. Radig        Jeremy Taylor             Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         540-1259                     560-6542                     259-7910                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov          kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov       jtaylor@woodburycountyiowa.gov       matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 
You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held June 6, 2023, at 
4:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa for the purpose of taking 
official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly come before 
the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. Members 
of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board. 
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation on 
concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place after 
properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when approved 
by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 
 
4:30 p.m.     Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence    
 
                     1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                Action 
 

Consent Agenda 

 

 

Items 2 through 5 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one     

         motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member. 

 

                     2.  Approval of the minutes of the May 30, 2023, meeting 

 

                     3.  Approval of claims  

        

                     4.  County Treasurer – Tina Bertrand 

                          Approval of resolution for abatement of taxes for Lake Forest MHC  

 

                     5.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                          Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions  

 

 



End Consent Agenda 

 

                     6.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                          a.  Approval of resolution establishing speed limits on Correctionville Road                     Action 

                          b.  Approval of resolution to amending the FY 2024-2028 construction program              Action 

 

4:40 p.m.      7.  Board Administration – Dennis Butler 

(Set time)           a.  Public hearing to levy General Basic property tax rate which exceed statutory           Action 

                                maximum 

                           b.  Public hearing on proposed Fiscal Year 2023 Budget                                                 Action 

                           c.  Adoption of Fiscal Year 2023 budget and resolution                                                    Action 

 

                     8.  County Attorney – James Loomis 

                          a.  Approval of full time Assistant County Attorney position to replace the current            Action 

                               position partially funded by the Byrne JAG Grant 

                          b.  Approval of Clerk II position in the County Attorney Fine Collection Division               Action 

 

                     9.  Board Administration – Dennis Butler 

                          Approval of resolution amending the resolution authorizing the issuance of                     Action 

                          $1,900,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2023A and levying 

                          a tax for the payment thereof; passed and approved on March 28, 2023, by  

                          substituting a new resolution therefor, approving and authorizing a form of loan 

                          agreement and authorizing and providing for the issuance of $1,900,000 General 

                          Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2023A and levying a tax to pay said notes;  

                          Approval of the Tax Exemption Certificate 

 

                   10.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                                  Information 

   

                   11.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                          Information 

  

                   12.  Board Concerns                                                                                                           Information      

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Subject to Additions/Deletions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS                                                 

 
MON., JUNE 5         6:00 p.m.        Board of Adjustment meeting, First Floor Boardroom 
 
WED., JUNE 7       10:00 a.m.        Loess Hills Alliance Stewardship Meeting, Pisgah, Iowa 
 
                               11:00 a.m.        Loess Hills Alliance Executive Meeting 
 
                                 1:00 p.m.        Loess Hills Alliance Full Board Meeting   
 
                                 4:45 p.m.        Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.                           
                                        
                               12:00 p.m.        District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St.                              
 
THU., JUNE 8        12:00 p.m.        SIMPCO Board of Directors, 1122 Pierce St.                              
 
FRI., JUNE 9            9:00 a.m.        Hungry Canyons Alliance Meeting, Bronson Community Building 
 

WED., JUNE 14       7:30 a.m.        SIMPCO Executive-Finance Committee - Hybrid  
 
                                 8:05 a.m.        Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 
 
                               10:00 a.m.        Western Iowa Tourism Region Annual Meeting, Audubon County 
 
THU., JUNE 15       4:00 p.m.        Conservation Board Meeting, Little Sioux Park 
  
                                4:30 p.m.        Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   
 
                                 5:00 p.m.        SIMPCO Annual Board of Directors Meeting & Award Ceremony, Mapleton, IA 
 
FRI., JUNE 16        12:00 p.m.       Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 2540 Glenn Ave.                                                                                              
 
WED. JUNE 21      12:00 p.m.        Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 

THU., JUNE 22     11:00 a.m.         Siouxland Regional Transit Systems (SRTS) Board Meeting, SIMPCO Office, 1122                                                             
                                                         Pierce St. 
 
                                1:30 p.m.         SIMPCO Community and Economic Development, Hybrid 
 
MON., JUNE 26      6:00 p.m.         Zoning Commission Meeting, First Floor Boardroom          

WED., JUNE 28      2:30 p.m.         Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 
 
WED., JULY 5        4:45 p.m.         Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.   

 

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable accommodations 
for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national origin, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to access the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



MAY 30, 2023, TWENTY-SECOND MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, May 30, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.  Board members present were Bittinger II, Nelson, 
Taylor, Radig, and Ung.  Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Melissa Thomas, Human 
Resources Director, Joshua Widman, Assistant County Attorney, Dennis Butler, Finance and Budget Director, and Michelle 
Skaff, Deputy Auditor/Clerk to the Board. 

 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
  
1. Motion by Ung second by Taylor to approve the agenda for May 30, 2023.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
   
 Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve the following items by consent: 
 
2. To approve minutes of the May 23, 2023 meeting.  Copy filed. 
  
3. To approve the claims totaling $877,553.48.  Copy filed. 
 
4a. To approve property tax refund for Donna Jensen for parcel #894735381016, 1325 S Glass St., in the amount of 

$134.13.  Copy filed. 
 
4b. To approve property tax refund for David Page for parcel #884717377003, 4732 Birch Way, in the amount of 

$391.00.  Copy filed. 
 
4c. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution approving abatement of taxes for Woodbury 

County, parcel #884301100012.   
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,620 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ABATEMENT OF TAXES 
 

WHEREAS, the Woodbury County, Iowa is the titleholder of real estate Parcel #884301100012 located in Woodbury 
County, Iowa and legally described as follows:   
 
Parcel #884301100012 
 
KEDRON TOWNSHIP AN IRREG TCT BEING PART OF GOVT LOT 10 IN 1-88-43 DESCRIBED AS COM AT SW 
COR OF GOVT LOT 10 THNC E 356’ TO POB: THNC NE 1100.95’, THNC NE 458.76’, THNC E 78.95’, THNC 
S 1309.02’, THNC W 940.12’ TO POB 
                                                                                                                   
WHEREAS, the above-stated property has an unpaid balance of taxes owing, and the parcel is owned by a political 
subdivision of the state; and 
 
WHEREAS, the political subdivision, namely the Woodbury County, Iowa, is failing to immediately pay the taxes due; 
and   
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors sees that good cause exists for the abatement of these taxes and any future 
taxes that may be levied against this parcel; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors hereby abates the taxes owing 
on the above parcels according to Code of Iowa, 427.3, and hereby directs the Woodbury County Treasurer to abate 
these aforementioned taxes from the tax records.  
 
SO RESOLVED this 30th day of May, 2023. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Copy filed. 

 



May 30, 2023 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                                      Page 2 
 
 
 
5a. To approve the appointment of Katelyn Hemmesch, Intern, County Attorney Dept., effective 05-15-23, 

$18.00/hour.  Temporary Position.; the separation of Ashley Schumacher, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., 
effective 05-25-23. Resignation.; the appointment of Kiely Novak, Temporary Engineering Aide, Secondary Roads 
Dept., effective 06-05-23, $16.50/hour. Change Start Date to 6-5-23.; the reclassification of Hediberto Ponce, 
Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 06-12-23, $25.26/hour, 4%=$.98/hr.  Per CWA Civilian Officers 
Contract agreement, from Class 2 to Class 1.; and the reclassification of Katie Parker, Senior Clerk, Human 
Resources Dept., effective 06-12-23, $25.25/hour, 10%=$2.39/hr. Per Wage Plan comparability with AFSCME 
Courthouse Contract, from Grade 4/Step 4 to Grade 4/Step 5.  Copy filed. 

 
5b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for Civilian Jailer, 

County Sheriff Dept.  CWA:  $23.33/hour.  Copy filed. 
 
6a. To approve the underground utility permit for MidAmerican Energy.  Copy filed. 
 
6b. To approve the permit to work in the right of way for Kevin Small.  Copy filed. 
 
Carried 5-0. 
 
9. Motion by Radig second by Taylor to waive the nepotism policy for 3 Correctional Officers (K.G, A.T., & E.G.) with 

the Sheriff’s office.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
7. Kevin Winker, Drug Intelligence Officer (Iowa) presented an overview of overdose fatality review team.  Copy filed. 
 
8a. A public hearing was held at 4:45 p.m. on Amendment #1 to the Woodbury County FY 2023 budget.  The 

Chairperson called on anyone wishing to be heard. 
 
 Motion by Taylor second by Ung to close the public hearing.  Carried 5-0. 
 
8b. Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution approval of FY 

2022/2023 Budget Amendment #1.  Carried 5-0. 
 

APPROVAL OF FY 2022/2023 BUDGET AMENDMENT #1 
RESOLUTION #13,621 

 
WHEREAS, the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors has considered the proposed FY 2022/2023 county budget 
amendment #1; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing concerning the proposed county budget was held on May 30, 2023; 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County that the county budget 
amendment #1 for FY 2022/2023 as set forth in the budget amendment summary, is hereby adopted and that the 
Woodbury County Auditor is directed to file said budget and to establish accounting records in accordance with the 
attached schedules. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Chairperson and the County Auditor be and are hereby authorized to sign the 
approved FY 2022/2023 county budget amendment. 
 
Signed and dated the 30th day of May 2023. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVSIORS 
 Copy filed. 
 
8c. Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve the transfer of appropriation in the Sheriff’s FY23 budget due to 

employee transfers.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed.  
 
10. Motion by Ung second by Radig to direct the Zoning Commission to review/consider a Zoning Ordinance Text 

Amendment proposal to amend the Zoning Ordinance Land Use Summary Table to designate Temporary Heavy 



May 30, 2023 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                                      Page 3 
 
 
 

Construction Services:  Aggregate crush and screen (temporary); Asphalt mixing (temporary); and Concrete mixing 
(temporary) as Conditional Uses in the General Commercial (GC), & Highway Commercial (HC) Zoning Districts.  
Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 

  
11. Reports on committee meetings were heard. 
 
12. There were no citizen concerns. 
 
13.  Board concerns were heard. 
 
The Board adjourned the regular meeting until June 6, 2023. 
 
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 
 
 





 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 
RESOLUTION #  
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING ABATEMENT OF TAXES  
 

 
WHEREAS, Lake Forest MHC LLC is the titleholder of a mobile home VIN #0567164116 
located in Woodbury County, Iowa and legally described as follows:   
 

VIN #0567164116 1976 Champion Mobile Home 

   
WHEREAS, the above-stated mobile home has taxes payable including special 
assessments and the mobile home is owned by Lake Forest MHC LLC. 
 
WHEREAS, these taxes are uncollectable or impractical to pursue collection through 
personal judgment or tax sale. 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors sees that good cause exists for the abatement of 
these taxes and;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Woodbury County Board of 
Supervisors hereby abates the taxes owing on the above mobile home according to 
Code of Iowa, 445.16 for the taxes owed and hereby directs the Woodbury County 
Treasurer to abate these aforementioned taxes from the tax records. 
  
SO RESOLVED this 6th day of June, 2023. 
 
 

 ATTEST:                                                    WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 
__________________________                    __________________________________ 
Michelle Skaff, Deputy                                             Matthew Ung, Chairman 
Woodbury County Auditor/Recorder 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





































































APPROVAL OF FY 2023/2024 BUDGET AND CERTIFICATION OF TAXES 

 

RESOLUTION #__________ 

 

 

               WHEREAS, the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors has considered the proposed FY 

2023/2024 county budget and certification of taxes, and 

 

               WHEREAS, a public hearing concerning the proposed county budget was held on June 6, 2023, 

 

               NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County that the 

county budget and certificate of taxes for FY 2023/2024 as set forth in the budget summary, is hereby 

adopted and that the Woodbury County Auditor is directed to file said budget and to establish 

accounting records in accordance with the attached schedules. 

 

               BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chairperson and the County Auditor be and are hereby 

authorized to sign the approved FY 2023/2024 county budget. 

 

               Signed and dated this 6th day of June, 2023. 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                      _________________________________ 

                                                                                                      Matthew A. Ung, Chairman 

                                                                                                      Woodbury County Board of Supervisors 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________ 

               Patrick F. Gill 

               Woodbury County Auditor 











Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 
Attorneys at Law 
100 Court Avenue, Suite 600 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309-2231 
Phone:  515-243-7611 
Fax:  515-243-2149 
www.ahlerslaw.com 
Jason L. Comisky 
515.246.0337 
jcomisky@ahlerslaw.com 

 WISHARD & BAILY - 1888; GUERNSEY & BAILY - 1893; BAILY & STIPP - 1901; STIPP, PERRY, BANNISTER & STARZINGER - 1914; BANNISTER, CARPENTER, 
 AHLERS & COONEY - 1950; AHLERS, COONEY, DORWEILER, ALLBEE, HAYNIE & SMITH - 1974; AHLERS, COONEY, DORWEILER, HAYNIE, SMITH & ALLBEE, P.C. - 1990 

 
May 31, 2023 

 
Via E-Mail Only 
Mr. Dennis Butler 
Finance/Budget Director 
Woodbury County Courthouse 
620 Douglas Street, Room 104 
Sioux City, Iowa 51101  
 

Re: Woodbury County, State of Iowa 
$1,900,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2023A  

 
Dear Dennis: 
 

Enclosed are documents to complete Board action in connection with the authorization 
for the issuance of the above Notes. Please print additional copies for execution as indicated 
in the following itemization of authorizing documents. 
 

1. The Board procedure consists of the following: 

(a) Resolution authorizing the issuance of the Notes. 

The resolution also incorporates by reference the form of the Tax Exemption 
Certificate. 

There are blank spaces appearing in the form of Note set out in the resolution.  
These need not be completed but may be left blank as a guide since different amounts, 
dates and percents will be inserted within the blank spaces. 

The resolution must be adopted by an affirmative vote equal to a majority of the 
full Board membership. Please return one executed copy to us for the transcript. 

(b) Tax Exemption Certificate.  The Tax Exemption Certificate sets out in 
detail a number of facts, promises and obligations which must be met and agreed to by 
the County in order to maintain these Notes as tax exempt.  This Certificate may contain 
some blank spaces relating to matters of information dependent upon the resale price of 
the Notes which are not known and available at this time.  The information will be 
calculated and added to this certificate prior to closing and completed copies of pages 
with blank spaces will be provided to you.  This certificate should be signed and dated.  
Please return three (3) executed copies to us for the transcript. 



Page 2 
 
 

 

2. Closing Certificates and Documents: 

(a) Loan Agreement.  Please execute all copies and return the same to our 
office.  We will obtain the signature of the purchaser and return a fully executed copy for 
your file. Please return three (3) executed copies to us for the transcript. 

(b) Original Note.  The Note will be delivered under separate cover. 

(c) Delivery Certificate.  This certificate also should be signed, but not dated.  
Please complete and confirm the financial data on page 2, execute and return two 
executed copies to us for the transcript.  An executed copy will be provided to you 
after closing. 

(d) Transcript Certificate.  This certificate is to be executed and sealed in the 
manner indicated on the second page and may be dated at the time of completion.  A 
notary attestation for all official signatures is required.  Please execute and return two 
copies to us for the transcript.  An executed copy will be provided to you after closing. 

(e) County Auditor's Certificate.  A true copy of the authorizing resolution as 
adopted is to be certified and filed with the Auditor of Woodbury County.  Please certify 
to such filing on the certificate. Please return one executed copy to us for the 
transcript. 

(f) Form 8038-G -- Information Return for Tax Exempt Governmental 
Obligations.  The 8038-G will be delivered under separate cover. 

Tax Exemption 

The Tax Exemption Certificate is an important document and contains important 
information concerning the calculated yield on the Notes and a number of covenants and 
obligations on the part of the County.  This certificate should be retained along with all of 
your records regarding the use of proceeds, expenditure dates and investment information 
needed to comply with IRS guidelines.  I will not attempt to summarize all of the matters 
which are included in this certificate but I do want to point out some important ones. 

Tax exemption is based in part upon the fact that the use of the facilities to be 
acquired by the County with the proceeds will be for the benefit of the public and will not 
be used in the private trade or business of any business or non-tax-exempt entity.  The 
properties acquired with the Note proceeds must not be sold or diverted to any private or 
nonpublic use unless the significance of that action is reviewed by bond counsel. 

The Tax Exemption Certificate sets forth the best knowledge and belief which 
you have as of today concerning the timely expenditure of the proceeds as the County 
reasonably expects expenditures to occur.  If for any reason the County finds it will be 
prevented from expending the Note proceeds fully within three years, that matter should 
be referred to us. 



Page 3 
 
 

 

These Notes are also issued under the expectation that the County will be exempt 
from the requirement to rebate arbitrage earnings to the United States Government since 
you intend to spend the proceeds of the Notes for construction purposes within two (2) 
years of issuance and meet the other requirements of the two-year expenditure exemption 
from the rebate provisions. 

These Notes are also issued under the expectation that the County will be exempt 
from the requirement to rebate arbitrage earnings to the United States Government since 
you intend to spend the proceeds of the Notes within 18 months of issuance in 
accordance with the schedule described in Section 3.3 of the Tax Exemption Certificate. 

These Notes are also issued under the expectation that you will be exempt from 
the requirement to rebate arbitrage earnings to the United States Government, because 
you will issue $5,000,000 or less of Notes or any similar obligations for public purposes 
during the calendar year.  (This excludes Industrial Development Revenue Notes.)  If for 
any reason you should need to exceed that amount of Note issuance, the matter should be 
brought to our attention immediately.  For this purpose, "Notes" generally includes any 
debt obligation including warrants, lease-purchase contracts, contracts to purchase, bonds 
and others. 

Also, these Notes are designated as qualified tax-exempt obligations, making 
them desirable for certain banks as investments and making possible a more favorable 
interest rate.  For this designation to be proper, it is necessary that the County reasonably 
expects to issue $10,000,000 or less of Notes or other obligations in the course of this 
calendar year.  If that amount should be exceeded, it would be necessary to review the 
situation immediately. 

There are a number of other general promises and commitments by the County to 
take or refrain from action, which are necessary to maintain the tax exemption of these 
Notes.  You should recognize that these promises and commitments are required of the 
County on an ongoing basis and that the possibility of some additional future action does 
exist. 

 
Closing Matters. 

As you know, closing of this issue is scheduled to occur on or about June 20, 2023.  At 
the time of closing, the "Purchaser's" copies of the above items will be delivered to the Purchaser 
of the Notes in exchange for the agreed purchase price.  Our legal opinion also will be delivered 
to the Purchaser at that time. 

 
Please return executed documents to us by June 13, 2023 to allow sufficient time for 

review prior to closing. 
  



Page 4 
 
 

 

 
Should you have any questions, or if we can be of any assistance in completing the 

enclosed items, please don't hesitate to contact me. 
 

Ahlers & Cooney, P.C. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Jason L. Comisky 
FOR THE FIRM 

 
 
JLC:ks 
Enclosures 
cc: Karen James (via email) 

Heather Satterwhite (via email) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

02207947-1\18799-041 



ITEMS TO INCLUDE ON AGENDA FOR JUNE 6, 2023 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
 

 
$1,900,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2023A 
 
•  Resolution amending the Resolution approving and authorizing a form of Loan 

Agreement and authorizing and providing for the issuance, and levying a tax to pay the 
Notes; Approval of the Tax Exemption Certificate. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE MUST BE GIVEN PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 
CHAPTER 21 AND THE LOCAL RULES OF THE COUNTY. 

 
 
 
 



 

- 1 - 

June 6, 2023 
 

The Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, State of Iowa, met in _______________ 
session, in the Basement Boardroom, Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux 
City, Iowa, at __________ _____.M., on the above date.  There were present Chairperson 
_______________, in the chair, and the following named Board Members: 
 
 

__________________________________________________ 
 
 
Absent: ___________________________________________ 
 
 
Vacant: ___________________________________________ 

 
 

* * * * * * *  
 
  



 

- 2 - 

Board Member ____________________ introduced the following Resolution entitled 
"RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ‘RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF 
$1,900,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 2023A, AND 
LEVYING A TAX FOR THE PAYMENT THEREOF,’ PASSED AND APPROVED ON 
MARCH 28, 2023, BY SUBSTITUTING A NEW RESOLUTION THEREFOR, APPROVING 
AND AUTHORIZING A FORM OF LOAN AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING AND 
PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF $1,900,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL 
LOAN NOTES, SERIES 2023A, AND LEVYING A TAX TO PAY SAID NOTES; 
APPROVAL OF THE TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE" and moved that it be adopted.  
Board Member ____________________ seconded the motion to adopt, and the roll being called 
thereon, the vote was as follows: 
 
 

AYES: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

 

 
 
 

___________________________________________ 

NAYS: ___________________________________________ 
 
 

Whereupon, the Chairperson declared said Resolution duly adopted as follows: 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION AMENDING THE ‘RESOLUTION 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF $1,900,000 GENERAL 
OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 2023A, AND 
LEVYING A TAX FOR THE PAYMENT THEREOF,’ PASSED 
AND APPROVED ON MARCH 28, 2023, BY SUBSTITUTING 
A NEW RESOLUTION THEREFOR, APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING A FORM OF LOAN AGREEMENT AND 
AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF 
$1,900,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN 
NOTES, SERIES 2023A, AND LEVYING A TAX TO PAY 
SAID NOTES; APPROVAL OF THE TAX EXEMPTION 
CERTIFICATE 
 

WHEREAS, the Issuer is a political subdivision, organized and exists under and by virtue 
of the laws and Constitution of the State of Iowa; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Issuer is in need of funds to pay costs of erecting, equipping, remodeling 
or reconstructing of the Courthouse including remodeling Room 210, software, hardware and 
other equipment; equipping the law enforcement center including software, hardware and other 
equipment; and erecting, equipping, remodeling or reconstructing the Siouxland District Health 



 

- 3 - 

building, essential county purpose(s), and it is deemed necessary and advisable that General 
Obligation Capital Loan Notes, to the amount of not to exceed $600,701 be authorized for said 
purpose(s); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by Sections 331.402 and 331.443 of 
the Code of Iowa, this Board has held a public meeting and hearing upon the proposal to institute 
proceedings for the issuance of the Notes, and the Board is therefore now authorized to proceed 
with the issuance of said Notes for such purpose(s); and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer is in need of funds to pay costs of the planning, acquisition, 
leasing, construction, reconstruction, extension, remodeling, improvement, repair, equipping, 
maintenance, and operation of works and facilities useful for the collection, treatment, and 
disposal of surface waters and streams including the 28th Street sewer project; and the 
construction, reconstruction, improvement, or repair of Elk Creek Road which is located along 
the corporate limits of a city and is partly within and partly without the limits and is in whole or 
part a secondary road and is also a capital project that assists in economic development which 
creates jobs and wealth, essential county purpose(s), and it is deemed necessary and advisable 
that General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, to the amount of not to exceed $662,969 be 
authorized for said purpose(s); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by Sections 331.402 and 331.443 of 
the Code of Iowa, this Board has held a public meeting and hearing upon the proposal to institute 
proceedings for the issuance of the Notes, and the Board is therefore now authorized to proceed 
with the issuance of said Notes for such purpose(s); and 

WHEREAS, the County is in need of funds to pay costs of the acquisition and equipping 
a vehicle for emergency services which is necessary for the operation of the county or the health 
and welfare of its citizens, general county purpose(s), and it is deemed necessary and advisable 
that General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, to the amount of not to exceed $60,000 be 
authorized for said purpose(s); and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has a population in excess of 50,000, and the Notes for these 
purposes do not exceed $300,000; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by Sections 331.402 and 331.442 of 
the Code of Iowa, the Board of the County has held public meeting and hearing upon the 
proposal to institute proceedings for the issuance of Notes for general county purpose(s) in the 
amounts as above set forth, and, no petition for referendum having been received, the Board is 
therefore now authorized to proceed with the issuance of said Notes for such purpose(s); and 

WHEREAS, the County is in need of funds to pay costs of the acquisition and equipping 
of sheriff’s vehicles which are necessary for the operation of the county or the health and welfare 
of its citizens, general county purpose(s), and it is deemed necessary and advisable that General 
Obligation Capital Loan Notes, to the amount of not to exceed $276,330 be authorized for said 
purpose(s); and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has a population in excess of 50,000, and the Notes for these 
purposes do not exceed $300,000; and 



 

- 4 - 

WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by Sections 331.402 and 331.442 of 
the Code of Iowa, the Board of the County has held public meeting and hearing upon the 
proposal to institute proceedings for the issuance of Notes for general county purpose(s) in the 
amounts as above set forth, and, no petition for referendum having been received, the Board is 
therefore now authorized to proceed with the issuance of said Notes for such purpose(s); and 

WHEREAS, the County is in need of funds to pay costs of the acquisition and equipping 
of the sheriff’s department including body cameras and tasers which are necessary for the 
operation of the county or the health and welfare of its citizens, general county purpose(s), and it 
is deemed necessary and advisable that General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, to the amount of 
not to exceed $300,000 be authorized for said purpose(s); and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has a population in excess of 50,000, and the Notes for these 
purposes do not exceed $300,000; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to notice published as required by Sections 331.402 and 331.442 of 
the Code of Iowa, the Board of the County has held public meeting and hearing upon the 
proposal to institute proceedings for the issuance of Notes for general county purpose(s) in the 
amounts as above set forth, and, no petition for referendum having been received, the Board is 
therefore now authorized to proceed with the issuance of said Notes for such purpose(s); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 331.445 of the Code of Iowa, it is hereby found and 
determined that the various general obligation capital loan Notes authorized as hereinabove 
described shall be combined for the purpose of issuance in a single issue of $1,900,000 General 
Obligation Capital Loan Notes as hereinafter set forth; and 
 

WHEREAS, the above mentioned Notes were heretofore sold and action should now be 
taken to issue said Notes conforming to the terms and conditions of the best bid received at the 
sale; and 

 
WHEREAS, of March 28, 2023, the Board of Supervisors of said County did adopt a 

certain Resolution entitled “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF $1,900,000 
GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTES, SERIES 2023A, AND LEVYING A 
TAX FOR THE PAYMENT THEREOF”; and 

 
WHEREAS, due to certain changes in the overall financing plans of the County, it is 

necessary to make numerous changes to the Resolution adopted on March 28, 2023; and, 
therefore, said Board has adopted a new Resolution to be substituted in its entirety for the 
Resolution previously adopted March 28, 2023, authorizing the issuance of $1,900,000 General 
Obligation Capital Loan Notes, Series 2023A. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA: 
 

Section 1. Definitions.  The following terms shall have the following meanings in this 
Resolution unless the text expressly or by necessary implication requires otherwise: 



 

- 5 - 

 • "Issuer" and "County" shall mean Woodbury County, State of Iowa. 
 
 • "Loan Agreement" shall mean a Loan Agreement between the Issuer and a 
lender or lenders in substantially the form attached to and approved by this Resolution. 
 
 • "Note Fund" shall mean the fund created in Section 3 of this Resolution. 
 
 • "Notes" shall mean $1,900,000 General Obligation Capital Loan Notes, 
Series 2023A, authorized to be issued by this Resolution. 
 
 • "Paying Agent" shall mean the County Treasurer, or such successor as 
may be approved by Issuer as provided herein and who shall carry out the duties 
prescribed herein as Issuer's agent to provide for the payment of principal of and interest 
on the Notes as the same shall become due. 
 
 • "Project" shall mean (a) erecting, equipping, remodeling or reconstructing 
of the Courthouse including remodeling Room 210, software, hardware and other 
equipment; equipping the law enforcement center including software, hardware and other 
equipment; and erecting, equipping, remodeling or reconstructing the Siouxland District 
Health building; (b) the planning, acquisition, leasing, construction, reconstruction, 
extension, remodeling, improvement, repair, equipping, maintenance, and operation of 
works and facilities useful for the collection, treatment, and disposal of surface waters 
and streams including the 28th Street sewer project; and the construction, reconstruction, 
improvement, or repair of Elk Creek Road which is located along the corporate limits of a 
city and is partly within and partly without the limits and is in whole or part a secondary 
road and is also a capital project that assists in economic development which creates jobs 
and wealth; (c) the acquisition and equipping a vehicle for emergency services which is 
necessary for the operation of the county or the health and welfare of its citizens; (d) the 
acquisition and equipping of sheriff’s vehicles which are necessary for the operation of 
the county or the health and welfare of its citizens; and (e) the acquisition and equipping 
of the sheriff’s department including body cameras and tasers which are necessary for the 
operation of the county or the health and welfare of its citizens. 
 
 • "Project Fund" shall mean the fund required to be established by this 
Resolution for the deposit of the proceeds of the Notes. 
 
 • "Rebate Fund" shall mean the fund so defined in and established pursuant 
to the Tax Exemption Certificate. 
 
 • "Registrar" shall mean the County Treasurer of Woodbury County, Iowa, 
or such successor as may be approved by Issuer as provided herein and who shall carry 
out the duties prescribed herein with respect to maintaining a register of the owners of the 
Notes.  Unless otherwise specified, the Registrar shall also act as Transfer Agent for the 
Notes. 
 
 • "Resolution" shall mean this resolution authorizing the Notes. 



 

- 6 - 

 • "Tax Exemption Certificate" shall mean the Tax Exemption Certificate 
approved under the terms of this Resolution and to be executed by the Treasurer and 
delivered at the time of issuance and delivery of the Notes. 
 
 • "Treasurer" shall mean the County Treasurer or such other officer as shall 
succeed to the same duties and responsibilities with respect to the recording and payment 
of the Notes issued hereunder. 
 
Section 2. Levy and Certification of Annual Tax; Other Funds to be Used. 

a) Levy of Annual Tax.  That for the purpose of providing funds to pay the 
principal and interest of the Notes hereinafter authorized to be issued, there is hereby 
levied for each future year the following direct annual tax on all of the taxable property in 
Woodbury County, State of Iowa, to-wit: 

 
AMOUNT 

 FISCAL YEAR (JULY 1 TO JUNE 30) 
YEAR OF COLLECTION 

 
$ 444,250.08* 2023/2024 
$ 434,264.00 2024/2025 
$ 420,698.00 2025/2026 
$ 407,132.00 2026/2027 
$ 393,566.00 2027/2028 

 
* A levy has been included in the budget previously certified to pay the principal and 
interest of the Note coming due in fiscal year 2023/2024. 
 
(NOTE: For example the levy to be made and certified against the taxable valuations of 
January 1, 2023 will be collected during the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2024.) 

 
b) Resolution to be Filed With County Auditor.  A certified copy of this 

Resolution shall be filed with the Auditor of Woodbury County, Iowa and the Auditor is 
hereby instructed in and for each of the years as provided, to levy and assess the tax 
hereby authorized in Section 2 of this Resolution, in like manner as other taxes are levied 
and assessed, and such taxes so levied in and for each of the years aforesaid be collected 
in like manner as other taxes of the County are collected, and when collected be used for 
the purpose of paying principal and interest on said Notes issued in anticipation of the 
tax, and for no other purpose whatsoever which action requires a modification and 
change of the levies originally made in accordance with the Note Resolution certified to 
and filed in the Woodbury County Auditor’s office on March 28, 2023. 

c) Additional County Funds Available.  Principal and interest coming due at any 
time when the proceeds of said tax on hand shall be insufficient to pay the same shall be 
promptly paid when due from current funds of the County available for that purpose and 
reimbursement shall be made from such special fund in the amounts thus advanced. 



 

- 7 - 

Section 3. Note Fund.  Said tax shall be assessed and collected each year at the same time 
and in the same manner as, and in addition to, all other taxes in and for the County, and when 
collected they shall be converted into a special fund within the Debt Service Fund to be known 
as the "2023A GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTE FUND NO. 1" (the "Note 
Fund"), which is hereby pledged for and shall be used only for the payment of the principal of 
and interest on the Notes hereinafter authorized to be issued; and also there shall be apportioned 
to said fund its proportion of taxes received by the County from property that is centrally 
assessed by the State of Iowa. 

Section 4. Application of Note Proceeds.  Proceeds of the Notes, other than accrued 
interest except as may be provided below, shall be credited to the Project Fund and expended 
therefrom for the purposes of issuance.  Any amounts on hand in the Project Fund shall be 
available for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Notes at any time that other funds 
shall be insufficient to the purpose, in which event such funds shall be repaid to the Project Fund 
at the earliest opportunity.  Any balance on hand in the Project Fund and not immediately 
required for its purposes may be invested not inconsistent with limitations provided by law or 
this Resolution. 

Section 5. Investment of Note Fund Proceeds.  All moneys held in the Note Fund, 
provided for by Section 3 of this Resolution shall be invested in investments permitted by 
Chapter 12B, Code of Iowa, as amended, or deposited in financial institutions which are 
members of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the deposits in which are insured 
thereby and all such deposits exceeding the maximum amount insured from time to time by 
FDIC or its equivalent successor in any one financial institution shall be continuously secured in 
compliance with Chapter 12C of the Code of Iowa, as amended, or otherwise by a valid pledge 
of direct obligations of the United States Government having an equivalent market value.  All 
such interim investments shall mature before the date on which the moneys are required for 
payment of principal of or interest on the Notes as herein provided. 

Section 6. Note Details, Execution and Redemption. 

a) Note Details.  A General Obligation Capital Loan Note of the County in the 
amount of $1,900,000, shall be issued to evidence the obligations of the Issuer under the 
Loan Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Sections 331.402, 331.442, 331.443 and 
331.445 of the Code of Iowa for the aforesaid purposes.  The Note shall be issued as a 
term note.  The Note shall be designated "GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN 
NOTE, SERIES 2023A", be dated June 20, 2023, and bear interest from the date thereof, 
until payment thereof, at the office of the Paying Agent, said interest payable on 
December 1, 2023, and semiannually thereafter on the 1st day of June and December in 
each year until maturity at the rates hereinafter provided. 

The Note shall be executed by the manual or facsimile signature of the 
Chairperson and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Auditor, and 
impressed or printed with the seal of the County and shall be fully registered as to both 
principal and interest as provided in this Resolution; principal, interest and premium, if 
any, shall be payable at the office of the Paying Agent by mailing of a check to the 



 

- 8 - 

registered owner of the Note.  The Note shall be in the denomination of $100,000 or 
multiples thereof.  The Note shall mature and bear interest as follows: 

 
Principal 
Amount 

 Interest 
Rate 

 Maturity 
June 1st 

 
 $1,900,000 3.570% 2028* 

 
 *Term Note 
 

b) Redemption. 

i. Optional Redemption.  The Notes may be called at any time for optional 
redemption by the Issuer on any date, from any funds regardless of source, in 
whole or from time to time in part, in any order of maturity and within an annual 
maturity by lot.  The terms of redemption shall be par, plus accrued interest to 
date of call. 

Thirty days' written notice of redemption shall be given to the registered 
owner of the Note.  Failure to give written notice to any registered owner of the 
Notes or any defect therein shall not affect the validity of any proceedings for the 
redemption of the Notes.  All Notes or portions thereof called for redemption will 
cease to bear interest after the specified redemption date, provided funds for their 
redemption are on deposit at the place of payment.  Written notice will be deemed 
completed upon transmission to the owner of record. 

 
If selection by lot within a maturity is required, the Registrar shall 

designate the Notes to be redeemed by random selection of the names of the 
registered owners of the entire annual maturity until the total amount of Notes to 
be called has been reached. 

 



 

- 9 - 

ii. Mandatory Payment and Redemption of Term Notes.  All Term Notes 
are subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity at a price equal to 100% of 
the portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed plus accrued interest at 
the redemption date on June 1st of each of the years in the principal amount set 
opposite each year in the following schedule: 

 
Term Note: 

 
Principal 
Amount 

 Interest 
Rate 

 Maturity 
June 1st 

$380,000  3.570%  2024 
$380,000  3.570%  2025 
$380,000  3.570%  2026 
$380,000  3.570%  2027 
$380,000  3.570%    2028* 

 
*Final Maturity 
 

The principal amount of Term Notes may be reduced through the earlier optional 
redemption, with any partial optional redemption of the Term Notes credited against 
future mandatory redemption requirements for such Term Notes in such order as the 
County shall determine. 

 
Section 7. Registration of Notes; Appointment of Registrar; Transfer; Ownership; 

Delivery; and Cancellation. 

a) Registration.  The ownership of Notes may be transferred only by the making 
of an entry upon the books kept for the registration and transfer of ownership of the 
Notes, and in no other way. The County Treasurer is hereby appointed as Note Registrar 
under the terms of this Resolution.  Registrar shall maintain the books of the Issuer for 
the registration of ownership of the Notes for the payment of principal of and interest on 
the Notes as provided in this Resolution.  All Notes shall be negotiable as provided in 
Article 8 of the Uniform Commercial Code and Section 331.446 of the Code of Iowa, 
subject to the provisions for registration and transfer contained in the Notes and in this 
Resolution. 

b) Transfer.  The ownership of any Note may be transferred only upon the 
Registration Books kept for the registration and transfer of Notes and only upon 
surrender thereof at the office of the Registrar together with an assignment duly executed 
by the holder or his duly authorized attorney in fact in such form as shall be satisfactory 
to the Registrar, along with the address and social security number or federal employer 
identification number of such transferee (or, if registration is to be made in the name of 
multiple individuals, of all such transferees).  In the event that the address of the 
registered owner of a Note (other than a registered owner which is the nominee of the 
broker or dealer in question) is that of a broker or dealer, there must be disclosed on the 
Registration Books the information pertaining to the registered owner required above.  
Upon the transfer of any such Note, a new fully registered Note, of any denomination or 



 

- 10 - 

denominations permitted by this Resolution in aggregate principal amount equal to the 
unmatured and unredeemed principal amount of such transferred fully registered Note, 
and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date or dates shall be 
delivered by the Registrar. 

c) Registration of Transferred Notes.  In all cases of the transfer of the Notes, the 
Registrar shall register, at the earliest practicable time, on the Registration Books, the 
Notes, in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution. 

d) Ownership.  As to any Note, the person in whose name the ownership of the 
same shall be registered on the Registration Books of the Registrar shall be deemed and 
regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of or on account of 
the principal of any such Notes and the premium, if any, and interest thereon shall be 
made only to or upon the order of the registered owner thereof or his legal representative.  
All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon 
such Note, including the interest thereon, to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

e) Cancellation.  All Notes which have been redeemed shall not be reissued but 
shall be cancelled by the Registrar.  All Notes which are cancelled by the Registrar shall 
be destroyed and a certificate of the destruction thereof shall be furnished promptly to the 
Issuer; provided that if the Issuer shall so direct, the Registrar shall forward the cancelled 
Notes to the Issuer. 

f) Non-Presentment of Notes.  In the event any payment check, wire, or electronic 
transfer of funds representing payment of principal of or interest on the Notes is returned 
to the Paying Agent or if any note is not presented for payment of principal at the 
maturity or redemption date, if funds sufficient to pay such principal of or interest on 
Notes shall have been made available to the Paying Agent for the benefit of the owner 
thereof, all liability of the Issuer to the owner thereof for such interest or payment of such 
Notes shall forthwith cease, terminate and be completely discharged, and thereupon it 
shall be the duty of the Paying Agent to hold such funds, without liability for interest 
thereon, for the benefit of the owner of such Notes who shall thereafter be restricted 
exclusively to such funds for any claim of whatever nature on his part under this 
Resolution or on, or with respect to, such interest or Notes.  The Paying Agent's 
obligation to hold such funds shall continue for a period equal to two years and six 
months following the date on which such interest or principal became due, whether at 
maturity, or at the date fixed for redemption thereof, or otherwise, at which time the 
Paying Agent shall surrender any remaining funds so held to the Issuer, whereupon any 
claim under this Resolution by the Owners of such interest or Notes of whatever nature 
shall be made upon the Issuer. 

g) Registration and Transfer Fees.  The Registrar may furnish to each owner, at 
the Issuer's expense, one note for each annual maturity.  The Registrar shall furnish 
additional Notes in lesser denominations (but not less than the minimum denomination) 
to an owner who so requests. 



 

- 11 - 

Section 8. Reissuance of Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost Notes.  In case any 
outstanding Note shall become mutilated or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the Issuer shall at the 
request of Registrar authenticate and deliver a new Note of like tenor and amount as the Note so 
mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated Note to 
Registrar, upon surrender of such mutilated Note, or in lieu of and substitution for the Note 
destroyed, stolen or lost, upon filing with the Registrar evidence satisfactory to the Registrar and 
Issuer that such Note has been destroyed, stolen or lost and proof of ownership thereof, and upon 
furnishing the Registrar and Issuer with satisfactory indemnity and complying with such other 
reasonable regulations as the Issuer or its agent may prescribe and paying such expenses as the 
Issuer may incur in connection therewith. 

Section 9. Record Date.  Payments of principal and interest, otherwise than upon full 
redemption, made in respect of any Note, shall be made to the registered holder thereof or to 
their designated agent as the same appear on the books of the Registrar on the 15th day of the 
month preceding the payment date.  All such payments shall fully discharge the obligations of 
the Issuer in respect of such Notes to the extent of the payments so made.  Upon receipt of the 
final payment of principal, the holder of the Note shall surrender the Note to the Paying Agent. 

Section 10. Execution, Authentication and Delivery of the Notes.  Upon the adoption of 
this Resolution, the Chairperson and Auditor shall execute the Notes by their manual or 
authorized signature and deliver the Notes to the Registrar, who shall authenticate the Notes and 
deliver the same to or upon order of the Purchaser.  No Note shall be valid or obligatory for any 
purpose or shall be entitled to any right or benefit hereunder unless the Registrar shall duly 
endorse and execute on such Note a Certificate of Authentication substantially in the form of the 
Certificate herein set forth.  Such Certificate upon any Note executed on behalf of the Issuer 
shall be conclusive evidence that the Note so authenticated has been duly issued under this 
Resolution and that the holder thereof is entitled to the benefits of this Resolution. 

Section 11. Right to Name Substitute Paying Agent or Registrar.  Issuer reserves the right 
to name a substitute, successor Registrar or Paying Agent upon giving prompt written notice to 
each registered noteholder. 

  



 

- 12 - 

Section 12. Form of Note.  Notes shall be printed substantially in the form as follows: 

"STATE OF IOWA" 
"COUNTY OF WOODBURY" 

"GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL LOAN NOTE" 
"SERIES 2023A" 

COUNTY PURPOSE 
 

Rate: 3.570% 
Maturity: June 1, 2028 
Note Date: June 20, 2023 
CUSIP No.: N/A 
"Registered" 
Certificate No. 1 
Principal Amount: $1,900,000 

 
Woodbury County, State of Iowa, a political subdivision organized and existing under 

and by virtue of the Constitution and laws of the State of Iowa (the "Issuer"), for value received, 
promises to pay from the source and as hereinafter provided, on the maturity date indicated 
above, to 
 

(Registration panel to be completed by Registrar or Printer with name of Registered 
Owner). 
 
or registered assigns, the principal sum of ONE MILLION NINE HUNDRED THOUSAND 
DOLLARS in lawful money of the United States of America, on the maturity date shown above, 
only upon presentation and surrender hereof at the office of the County Treasurer, Paying Agent 
of this issue, or its successor, with interest on the sum from the date hereof until paid at the rate 
per annum specified above, payable on December 1, 2023, and semiannually thereafter on the 1st 
day of June and December in each year as set forth in the Debt Service Schedule attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

Interest and principal shall be paid to the registered holder of the Note as shown on the 
records of ownership maintained by the Registrar as of the 15th day of the month preceding such 
interest payment date.  Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-
day months. 
 

This Note is issued pursuant to the provisions of Sections 331.402, 331.442, 331.443 and 
331.445 of the Code of Iowa, for the purpose of paying costs of (a) erecting, equipping, 
remodeling or reconstructing of the Courthouse including remodeling Room 210, software, 
hardware and other equipment; equipping the law enforcement center including software, 
hardware and other equipment; and erecting, equipping, remodeling or reconstructing the 
Siouxland District Health building; (b) the planning, acquisition, leasing, construction, 
reconstruction, extension, remodeling, improvement, repair, equipping, maintenance, and 
operation of works and facilities useful for the collection, treatment, and disposal of surface 
waters and streams including the 28th Street sewer project; and the construction, reconstruction, 
improvement, or repair of Elk Creek Road which is located along the corporate limits of a city 



 

- 13 - 

and is partly within and partly without the limits and is in whole or part a secondary road and is 
also a capital project that assists in economic development which creates jobs and wealth; (c) the 
acquisition and equipping a vehicle for emergency services which is necessary for the operation 
of the county or the health and welfare of its citizens; (d) the acquisition and equipping of 
sheriff’s vehicles which are necessary for the operation of the county or the health and welfare of 
its citizens; and (e) the acquisition and equipping of the sheriff’s department including body 
cameras and tasers which are necessary for the operation of the county or the health and welfare 
of its citizens, and in order to evidence the obligations of the Issuer under a certain Loan 
Agreement dated the date hereof, in conformity to a Resolution of the Board of said County duly 
passed and approved.  For a complete statement of the funds from which and the conditions 
under which this Note is payable, and the general covenants and provisions pursuant to which 
this Note is issued, reference is made to the above described Loan Agreement and Resolution. 
 

The Note may be called at any time for optional redemption by the Issuer on any date, 
from any funds regardless of source, in whole or from time to time in part, in any order of 
maturity and within an annual maturity by lot.  The terms of redemption shall be par, plus 
accrued interest to date of call. 
 

Thirty days' written notice of redemption shall be given to the registered owner of the 
Note.  Failure to give written notice to any registered owner of the Notes or any defect therein 
shall not affect the validity of any proceedings for the redemption of the Notes.  All notes or 
portions thereof called for redemption will cease to bear interest after the specified redemption 
date, provided funds for their redemption are on deposit at the place of payment.  Written notice 
will be deemed completed upon transmission to the owner of record. 
 

If selection by lot within a maturity is required, the Registrar shall designate the Notes to 
be redeemed by random selection of the names of the registered owners of the entire annual 
maturity until the total amount of Notes to be called has been reached. 
 

The Note maturing on June 1, 2028 is subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity 
by application of money on deposit in the Note Fund and shall bear interest at 3.570% per annum 
at a price of the portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed plus accrued interest at 
the redemption date on June 1st of each of the years in the principal amount set opposite each 
year in the following schedule: 
 

Principal 
Amount 

   Maturity 
June 1st 

$380,000    2024 
$380,000    2025 
$380,000    2026 
$380,000    2027 
$380,000      2028* 

 
*Final Maturity 

 



 

- 14 - 

The principal amount of Term Notes may be reduced through the earlier optional 
redemption, with any partial optional redemption of the Term Notes credited against future 
mandatory redemption requirements for such Term Notes in such order as the County shall 
determine. 
 

Ownership of this Note may be transferred only by transfer upon the books kept for such 
purpose by the County Treasurer, the Registrar. Such transfer on the books shall occur only upon 
presentation and surrender of this Note at the office of the Registrar as designated below, 
together with an assignment duly executed by the owner hereof or his duly authorized attorney in 
the form as shall be satisfactory to the Registrar.  Issuer reserves the right to substitute the 
Registrar and Paying Agent but shall, however, promptly give notice to registered Noteholders of 
such change.  All notes shall be negotiable as provided in Article 8 of the Uniform Commercial 
Code and Section 331.446 of the Code of Iowa, subject to the provisions for registration and 
transfer contained in the Note Resolution. 
 

This Note is a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" designated by the County for purposes 
of Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986. 
 

And it is hereby represented and certified that all acts, conditions and things requisite, 
according to the laws and Constitution of the State of Iowa, to exist, to be had, to be done, or to 
be performed precedent to the lawful issue of this Note, have been existent, had, done and 
performed as required by law; that provision has been made for the levy of a sufficient 
continuing annual tax on all the taxable property within the territory of the Issuer for the payment 
of the principal and interest of this Note as the same will respectively become due; that such 
taxes have been irrevocably pledged for the prompt payment hereof, both principal and interest; 
and the total indebtedness of the Issuer including this Note, does not exceed the constitutional or 
statutory limitations. 
 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the Issuer by its Board, has caused this Note to be signed 
by the manual or facsimile signature of its Chairperson and attested by the manual or facsimile 
signature of its County Auditor, with the seal of the County printed or impressed hereon, and to 
be authenticated by the manual signature of an authorized representative of the Registrar, the 
County Treasurer, Woodbury County, Iowa. 
 

Date of authentication:_______________________ 
This is one of the Notes described in the within mentioned 
Resolution, as registered by the County Treasurer. 
 
COUNTY TREASURER, Registrar 
Woodbury County, Iowa 
 
 
By: ______________________________________________ 

Authorized Signature 
Registrar and Transfer Agent:  County Treasurer 
Paying Agent:    County Treasurer 



 

- 15 - 

 
SEE REVERSE FOR CERTAIN DEFINITIONS 
 
(Seal) 
(Signature Block) 
 
WOODBURY COUNTY, STATE OF IOWA 
 
By: ___________(manual or facsimile signature)_____________ 

Chairperson 
 
ATTEST: 
 
By: ___________(manual or facsimile signature)_____________ 

County Auditor 
 
 (Information Required for Registration) 
 

ASSIGNMENT 
 

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
_________________________ (Social Security or Tax Identification No. _______________) the 
within Note and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint _________________________ 
attorney in fact to transfer the said Note on the books kept for registration of the within Note, 
with full power of substitution in the premises. 
 
 Dated: __________________________________________________ 
 
  __________________________________________________ 
 
  __________________________________________________ 
  (Person(s) executing this Assignment sign(s) here) 
 
SIGNATURE ) 
GUARANTEED)__________________________________________________ 
 

IMPORTANT - READ CAREFULLY 
 

The signature(s) to this Power must correspond with the name(s) as written upon the face 
of the certificate(s) or note(s) in every particular without alteration or enlargement or any 
change whatever.  Signature guarantee must be provided in accordance with the 
prevailing standards and procedures of the Registrar and Transfer Agent.  Such standards 
and procedures may require signature to be guaranteed by certain eligible guarantor 
institutions that participate in a recognized signature guarantee program. 

 



 

- 16 - 

INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR REGISTRATION OF TRANSFER 
 
Name of Transferee(s)  
Address of Transferee(s)  
Social Security or Tax Identification  

Number of Transferee(s)  
Transferee is a(n): 

Individual*   Corporation  
Partnership   Trust  

 
*If the Note is to be registered in the names of multiple individual owners, the names of all such 
owners and one address and social security number must be provided. 
 

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this Note, shall 
be construed as though written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations: 
 

TEN COM - as tenants in common 
TEN ENT - as tenants by the entireties 
JT TEN - as joint tenants with rights of survivorship and not as tenants in common 
IA UNIF TRANS MIN ACT - .......... Custodian .......... 

 (Cust)                   (Minor) 
Under Iowa Uniform Transfers to Minors Act................... 

(State) 
 

ADDITIONAL ABBREVIATIONS MAY 
ALSO BE USED THOUGH NOT IN THE ABOVE LIST 

 
(End of form of Note) 

 
Section 13. Loan Agreement and Closing Documents.  The form of Loan Agreement in 

substantially the form attached to this Resolution is hereby approved and is authorized to be 
executed and issued on behalf of the Issuer by the Chairperson and attested by the County 
Auditor.  The Chairperson and County Auditor are authorized and directed to execute, attest, seal 
and deliver for and on behalf of the County any other additional certificates, documents, or other 
papers and perform all other acts, including without limitation the execution of all closing 
documents, as they may deem necessary or appropriate in order to implement and carry out the 
intent and purposes of this Resolution. 

Section 14. Contract Between Issuer and Purchaser.  This Resolution constitutes a 
contract between said County and the purchaser of the Notes. 

Section 15. Non-Arbitrage Covenants.  The Issuer reasonably expects and covenants that 
no use will be made of the proceeds from the issuance and sale of the Notes issued hereunder 
which will cause any of the Notes to be classified as arbitrage notes within the meaning of 
Sections 148(a) and (b) of the Internal Revenue Code of the United States, as amended, and that 
throughout the term of the Notes it will comply with the requirements of statutes and regulations 
issued thereunder. 



 

- 17 - 

To the best knowledge and belief of the Issuer, there are no facts or circumstances that 
would materially change the foregoing statements or the conclusion that it is not expected that 
the proceeds of the Notes will be used in a manner that would cause the Notes to be arbitrage 
notes. 
 

Section 16. Approval of Tax Exemption Certificate.  Attached hereto is a form of Tax 
Exemption Certificate stating the Issuer's reasonable expectations as to the use of the proceeds of 
the Notes.  The form of Tax Exemption Certificate is approved.  The Issuer hereby agrees to 
comply with the provisions of the Tax Exemption Certificate and the provisions of the Tax 
Exemption Certificate are hereby incorporated by reference as part of this Resolution.  The 
County Treasurer is hereby directed to make and insert all calculations and determinations 
necessary to complete the Tax Exemption Certificate at issuance of the Notes to certify as to the 
reasonable expectations and covenants of the Issuer at that date. 

Section 17. Additional Covenants, Representations and Warranties of the Issuer.  The 
Issuer certifies and covenants with the purchasers and holders of the Notes from time to time 
outstanding that the Issuer through its officers, (a) will make such further specific covenants, 
representations and assurances as may be necessary or advisable; (b) comply with all 
representations, covenants and assurances contained in the Tax Exemption Certificate, which 
Tax Exemption Certificate shall constitute a part of the contract between the Issuer and the 
owners of the Notes; (c) consult with Bond Counsel (as defined in the Tax Exemption 
Certificate); (d) pay to the United States, as necessary, such sums of money representing required 
rebates of excess arbitrage profits relating to the Notes; (e) file such forms, statements and 
supporting documents as may be required and in a timely manner; and (f) if deemed necessary or 
advisable by its officers, to employ and pay fiscal agents, financial advisors, attorneys and other 
persons to assist the Issuer in such compliance. 

Section 18. Amendment of Resolution to Maintain Tax Exemption.  This Resolution may 
be amended without the consent of any owner of the Notes if, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, 
such amendment is necessary to maintain tax exemption with respect to the Notes under 
applicable Federal law or regulations. 

Section 19. Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  For the sole purpose of qualifying the 
Notes as "Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations" pursuant to Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of the United States, the Issuer hereby designates the Notes as qualified tax-
exempt obligations and represents that the reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt 
governmental and qualified 501(c)(3) obligations which will be issued during the current 
calendar year will not exceed Ten (10) Million Dollars. 

Section 20. Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions or Ordinances.  All ordinances and 
resolutions and parts of ordinances and resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Section 21. Severability Clause.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 
Resolution be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining provisions 
hereof, and this Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and approval. 



 

- 18 - 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 6th day of June, 2023. 
  

 
 
  
Chairperson 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
County Auditor 
 
 

 

 
 



 

 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF IOWA 
 
COUNTY OF WOODBURY 

) 
) SS 
) 

 
I, the undersigned County Auditor of Woodbury County, State of Iowa, do hereby certify 

that attached is a true and complete copy of the portion of the records of the County showing 
proceedings of the Board, and the same is a true and complete copy of the action taken by the 
Board with respect to the matter at the meeting held on the date indicated in the attachment, 
which proceedings remain in full force and effect, and have not been amended or rescinded in 
any way; that meeting and all action thereat was duly and publicly held in accordance with a 
notice of meeting and tentative agenda, a copy of which was timely served on each member of 
the Board and posted on a bulletin board or other prominent place easily accessible to the public 
and clearly designated for that purpose at the principal office of the Board pursuant to the local 
rules of the Board and the provisions of Chapter 21, Code of Iowa, upon reasonable advance 
notice to the public and media at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the 
meeting as required by law and with members of the public present in attendance; I further 
certify that the individuals named therein were on the date thereof duly and lawfully possessed of 
their respective County offices as indicated therein, that no Board vacancy existed except as may 
be stated in the proceedings, and that no controversy or litigation is pending, prayed or 
threatened involving the incorporation, organization, existence or boundaries of the County or 
the right of the individuals named therein as officers to their respective positions. 
 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of the Board hereto affixed this __________ day of 
_______________, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 

County Auditor, Woodbury County, State of 
Iowa 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
02207971-1\18799-041 


	The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, May 30, 2023, at 4:30 p.m.  Board members present were Bittinger II, Nelson, Taylor, Radig, and Ung.  Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Melissa Thomas, Human Resources Dire...
	The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence.
	1. Motion by Ung second by Taylor to approve the agenda for May 30, 2023.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed.
	Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve the following items by consent:
	2. To approve minutes of the May 23, 2023 meeting.  Copy filed.
	3. To approve the claims totaling $877,553.48.  Copy filed.
	4a. To approve property tax refund for Donna Jensen for parcel #894735381016, 1325 S Glass St., in the amount of $134.13.  Copy filed.
	4b. To approve property tax refund for David Page for parcel #884717377003, 4732 Birch Way, in the amount of $391.00.  Copy filed.
	4c. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution approving abatement of taxes for Woodbury County, parcel #884301100012.
	WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA
	RESOLUTION #13,620
	RESOLUTION APPROVING ABATEMENT OF TAXES
	WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
	Copy filed.
	5a. To approve the appointment of Katelyn Hemmesch, Intern, County Attorney Dept., effective 05-15-23, $18.00/hour.  Temporary Position.; the separation of Ashley Schumacher, Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept., effective 05-25-23. Resignation.; the...
	5b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for Civilian Jailer, County Sheriff Dept.  CWA:  $23.33/hour.  Copy filed.
	6a. To approve the underground utility permit for MidAmerican Energy.  Copy filed.
	6b. To approve the permit to work in the right of way for Kevin Small.  Copy filed.
	Carried 5-0.
	9. Motion by Radig second by Taylor to waive the nepotism policy for 3 Correctional Officers (K.G, A.T., & E.G.) with the Sheriff’s office.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed.
	7. Kevin Winker, Drug Intelligence Officer (Iowa) presented an overview of overdose fatality review team.  Copy filed.
	8a. A public hearing was held at 4:45 p.m. on Amendment #1 to the Woodbury County FY 2023 budget.  The Chairperson called on anyone wishing to be heard.
	Motion by Taylor second by Ung to close the public hearing.  Carried 5-0.
	8b. Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution approval of FY 2022/2023 Budget Amendment #1.  Carried 5-0.
	APPROVAL OF FY 2022/2023 BUDGET AMENDMENT #1
	RESOLUTION #13,621
	WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVSIORS
	Copy filed.
	8c. Motion by Ung second by Radig to approve the transfer of appropriation in the Sheriff’s FY23 budget due to employee transfers.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed.
	10. Motion by Ung second by Radig to direct the Zoning Commission to review/consider a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment proposal to amend the Zoning Ordinance Land Use Summary Table to designate Temporary Heavy Construction Services:  Aggregate crush a...
	11. Reports on committee meetings were heard.
	12. There were no citizen concerns.
	13.  Board concerns were heard.
	The Board adjourned the regular meeting until June 6, 2023.
	Insert from: "Woodbury County Bonds - Lt to County w-Authorizing Documents (02212808x7F7E1).pdf"
	1. The Board procedure consists of the following:
	(a) Resolution authorizing the issuance of the Notes.
	The resolution also incorporates by reference the form of the Tax Exemption Certificate.
	There are blank spaces appearing in the form of Note set out in the resolution.  These need not be completed but may be left blank as a guide since different amounts, dates and percents will be inserted within the blank spaces.
	The resolution must be adopted by an affirmative vote equal to a majority of the full Board membership. Please return one executed copy to us for the transcript.
	(b) Tax Exemption Certificate.  The Tax Exemption Certificate sets out in detail a number of facts, promises and obligations which must be met and agreed to by the County in order to maintain these Notes as tax exempt.  This Certificate may contain so...

	2. Closing Certificates and Documents:
	(a) Loan Agreement.  Please execute all copies and return the same to our office.  We will obtain the signature of the purchaser and return a fully executed copy for your file. Please return three (3) executed copies to us for the transcript.
	(b) Original Note.  The Note will be delivered under separate cover.
	(c) Delivery Certificate.  This certificate also should be signed, but not dated.  Please complete and confirm the financial data on page 2, execute and return two executed copies to us for the transcript.  An executed copy will be provided to you aft...
	(d) Transcript Certificate.  This certificate is to be executed and sealed in the manner indicated on the second page and may be dated at the time of completion.  A notary attestation for all official signatures is required.  Please execute and return...
	(e) County Auditor's Certificate.  A true copy of the authorizing resolution as adopted is to be certified and filed with the Auditor of Woodbury County.  Please certify to such filing on the certificate. Please return one executed copy to us for the ...
	(f) Form 8038-G -- Information Return for Tax Exempt Governmental Obligations.  The 8038-G will be delivered under separate cover.
	Tax Exemption
	The Tax Exemption Certificate is an important document and contains important information concerning the calculated yield on the Notes and a number of covenants and obligations on the part of the County.  This certificate should be retained along with...
	Tax exemption is based in part upon the fact that the use of the facilities to be acquired by the County with the proceeds will be for the benefit of the public and will not be used in the private trade or business of any business or non-tax-exempt en...
	The Tax Exemption Certificate sets forth the best knowledge and belief which you have as of today concerning the timely expenditure of the proceeds as the County reasonably expects expenditures to occur.  If for any reason the County finds it will be ...
	These Notes are also issued under the expectation that the County will be exempt from the requirement to rebate arbitrage earnings to the United States Government since you intend to spend the proceeds of the Notes for construction purposes within two...
	These Notes are also issued under the expectation that the County will be exempt from the requirement to rebate arbitrage earnings to the United States Government since you intend to spend the proceeds of the Notes within 18 months of issuance in acco...
	These Notes are also issued under the expectation that you will be exempt from the requirement to rebate arbitrage earnings to the United States Government, because you will issue $5,000,000 or less of Notes or any similar obligations for public purpo...
	Also, these Notes are designated as qualified tax-exempt obligations, making them desirable for certain banks as investments and making possible a more favorable interest rate.  For this designation to be proper, it is necessary that the County reason...
	There are a number of other general promises and commitments by the County to take or refrain from action, which are necessary to maintain the tax exemption of these Notes.  You should recognize that these promises and commitments are required of the ...
	Closing Matters.
	As you know, closing of this issue is scheduled to occur on or about June 20, 2023.  At the time of closing, the "Purchaser's" copies of the above items will be delivered to the Purchaser of the Notes in exchange for the agreed purchase price.  Our le...
	02207947-1\18799-041

	Insert from: "Woodbury County - Authorizing Resolution (02212804x7F7E1).pdf"
	Section 1. Definitions.  The following terms shall have the following meanings in this Resolution unless the text expressly or by necessary implication requires otherwise:
	Section 2. Levy and Certification of Annual Tax; Other Funds to be Used.
	a) Levy of Annual Tax.  That for the purpose of providing funds to pay the principal and interest of the Notes hereinafter authorized to be issued, there is hereby levied for each future year the following direct annual tax on all of the taxable prope...
	b) Resolution to be Filed With County Auditor.  A certified copy of this Resolution shall be filed with the Auditor of Woodbury County, Iowa and the Auditor is hereby instructed in and for each of the years as provided, to levy and assess the tax here...
	c) Additional County Funds Available.  Principal and interest coming due at any time when the proceeds of said tax on hand shall be insufficient to pay the same shall be promptly paid when due from current funds of the County available for that purpos...

	Section 3. Note Fund.  Said tax shall be assessed and collected each year at the same time and in the same manner as, and in addition to, all other taxes in and for the County, and when collected they shall be converted into a special fund within the ...
	Section 4. Application of Note Proceeds.  Proceeds of the Notes, other than accrued interest except as may be provided below, shall be credited to the Project Fund and expended therefrom for the purposes of issuance.  Any amounts on hand in the Projec...
	Section 5. Investment of Note Fund Proceeds.  All moneys held in the Note Fund, provided for by Section 3 of this Resolution shall be invested in investments permitted by Chapter 12B, Code of Iowa, as amended, or deposited in financial institutions wh...
	Section 6. Note Details, Execution and Redemption.
	a) Note Details.  A General Obligation Capital Loan Note of the County in the amount of $1,900,000, shall be issued to evidence the obligations of the Issuer under the Loan Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Sections 331.402, 331.442, 331.443 and...
	b) Redemption.
	i. Optional Redemption.  The Notes may be called at any time for optional redemption by the Issuer on any date, from any funds regardless of source, in whole or from time to time in part, in any order of maturity and within an annual maturity by lot. ...
	ii. Mandatory Payment and Redemption of Term Notes.  All Term Notes are subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity at a price equal to 100% of the portion of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed plus accrued interest at the redemption da...


	Section 7. Registration of Notes; Appointment of Registrar; Transfer; Ownership; Delivery; and Cancellation.
	a) Registration.  The ownership of Notes may be transferred only by the making of an entry upon the books kept for the registration and transfer of ownership of the Notes, and in no other way. The County Treasurer is hereby appointed as Note Registrar...
	b) Transfer.  The ownership of any Note may be transferred only upon the Registration Books kept for the registration and transfer of Notes and only upon surrender thereof at the office of the Registrar together with an assignment duly executed by the...
	c) Registration of Transferred Notes.  In all cases of the transfer of the Notes, the Registrar shall register, at the earliest practicable time, on the Registration Books, the Notes, in accordance with the provisions of this Resolution.
	d) Ownership.  As to any Note, the person in whose name the ownership of the same shall be registered on the Registration Books of the Registrar shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of or on account ...
	e) Cancellation.  All Notes which have been redeemed shall not be reissued but shall be cancelled by the Registrar.  All Notes which are cancelled by the Registrar shall be destroyed and a certificate of the destruction thereof shall be furnished prom...
	f) Non-Presentment of Notes.  In the event any payment check, wire, or electronic transfer of funds representing payment of principal of or interest on the Notes is returned to the Paying Agent or if any note is not presented for payment of principal ...
	g) Registration and Transfer Fees.  The Registrar may furnish to each owner, at the Issuer's expense, one note for each annual maturity.  The Registrar shall furnish additional Notes in lesser denominations (but not less than the minimum denomination)...

	Section 8. Reissuance of Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost Notes.  In case any outstanding Note shall become mutilated or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the Issuer shall at the request of Registrar authenticate and deliver a new Note of like tenor a...
	Section 9. Record Date.  Payments of principal and interest, otherwise than upon full redemption, made in respect of any Note, shall be made to the registered holder thereof or to their designated agent as the same appear on the books of the Registrar...
	Section 10. Execution, Authentication and Delivery of the Notes.  Upon the adoption of this Resolution, the Chairperson and Auditor shall execute the Notes by their manual or authorized signature and deliver the Notes to the Registrar, who shall authe...
	Section 11. Right to Name Substitute Paying Agent or Registrar.  Issuer reserves the right to name a substitute, successor Registrar or Paying Agent upon giving prompt written notice to each registered noteholder.
	Section 12. Form of Note.  Notes shall be printed substantially in the form as follows:
	Section 13. Loan Agreement and Closing Documents.  The form of Loan Agreement in substantially the form attached to this Resolution is hereby approved and is authorized to be executed and issued on behalf of the Issuer by the Chairperson and attested ...
	Section 14. Contract Between Issuer and Purchaser.  This Resolution constitutes a contract between said County and the purchaser of the Notes.
	Section 15. Non-Arbitrage Covenants.  The Issuer reasonably expects and covenants that no use will be made of the proceeds from the issuance and sale of the Notes issued hereunder which will cause any of the Notes to be classified as arbitrage notes w...
	Section 16. Approval of Tax Exemption Certificate.  Attached hereto is a form of Tax Exemption Certificate stating the Issuer's reasonable expectations as to the use of the proceeds of the Notes.  The form of Tax Exemption Certificate is approved.  Th...
	Section 17. Additional Covenants, Representations and Warranties of the Issuer.  The Issuer certifies and covenants with the purchasers and holders of the Notes from time to time outstanding that the Issuer through its officers, (a) will make such fur...
	Section 18. Amendment of Resolution to Maintain Tax Exemption.  This Resolution may be amended without the consent of any owner of the Notes if, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, such amendment is necessary to maintain tax exemption with respect to the ...
	Section 19. Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations.  For the sole purpose of qualifying the Notes as "Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations" pursuant to Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code of the United States, the Issuer hereby designates the Note...
	Section 20. Repeal of Conflicting Resolutions or Ordinances.  All ordinances and resolutions and parts of ordinances and resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.
	Section 21. Severability Clause.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining provisions hereof, and this Resolution shall become effective immediately upon i...



